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CHAIR BAlSA: ... (gavel). .. The meeting of the Planning Committee, the Council of the
County of Maui, will be reconvened. This is a continuation of our meeting of
February 13 th , which was recessed until this morning.
Present with us we have Committee Members Jo Anne Johnson, she's the Vice-Chair,
and we also have Member Bill Medeiros. Also with us this morning we have our
Corporation Counsel Brian Moto; we also have Michael Hopper, the Deputy Corporation
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Counsel; and we also have our Planning Director Jeff Hunt; and Administrative Planning
Officer Joseph Alueta; and my wonderful staff David Raatz, my Legislative Attorney;
and Clarita Balala, our Committee Secretary.
Thank you, everybody, for being here this morning and I apologize for the little delay,
but we can't handle the traffic in Lahaina, as you know. We're doing the best we can.
This morning we are going to allow the three people that were here on the 13 th who had
to leave but were signed up and were unable to testify. They will be the only persons
allowed to testify this morning if they are present.

ITEM NO. 12:

TRANSIENT VACATION RENTALS (C.C. No. 01-150/C.R. No. 02-94)

CHAIR BAlSA: So the first person I'd like to call and she'll be given three minutes to testify
and we'd like her to state your name, if your represent yourself or an organization, and
also if you're speaking about a TVR, if there's any particular location, we'd like to know
where that is just to get an idea of the area you're talking about. So the first person to
testify this morning will be Charlene Parker. Charlene. And she will be followed if she
is here or he is here, I made this mistake once so now I don't know if it's a man or a
woman, Kelli Braxton. Good morning .

• . .BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY. .•
MS. PARKER: Good morning. Aloha to everyone in this room. My name is Charlene Parker.
I live in Huelo. I am for vacation rentals for an individual as myself. I have my property
from generations on, I am one-half Hawaiian and I'm also one-half Caucasian and
Oriental. Our family'S property has been in since King Kamehameha. We have the
original deed. I have wondered many times of family that we have in Keanae and in
Huelo, and a lot of them are caught in the woodwork.
We had a really nice man that talked and he lived in Huelo last Tuesday, and he was
talking about kids speeding and what not. Well, I'm sure it's my cousins. . .. (laughter)
. .. I had to laugh that time. But I have been doing a research for over five years now
and I have research of Hawaiians that are caught in the middle of everything. They don't
quite fit into society and they have beautiful lands, we have land in Huelo and in Keanae.
And they live in little shacks and they try to eat whatever they can, they don't have much
food. But they have a lot of aloha and taro patches and they have vegetables that they
just make for themselves and they take care of their aina. And they take care of their
children. But they are caught in the middle as what we would consider in a poor state.
I am fortunate, oh, I got out of the woodwork of that, and I look at my family, 'cause we
call it all ohana, and think what I can do for them. They will never leave their land.
They, it's, it's just a shame how they're caught there and the only way I feel that they can
make a living is through vacation rental, a small, little hale and to share their aloha and
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all their arts that we have learned from generation to generation of healing arts and
growing things. And that real aloha.
And I am taking courses in grant writing. I am also taking courses of finding out how to
get this, this project going for a lot of Hawaiians that are caught in the woodwork. I have
also worked for the State of Hawaii. I worked under Governor Waihee as one of the
appointees and I have learned a lot of political things. Oh, yeah, right, but what I want to
say is it's very, very important that we take this issue and we look at it not as one huge
general. Because I'm working on this project and I'll be writing to the Legislature, I'll be
writing to our congressmen, our senators, and trying to get grants in so we can put a hale
on there. And they can survive by teaching and turning Huelo into a real Hawaiian
habitat. And this will be the first, Maui will be the first.
You haven't heard the last of me, you will hear a lot about this that I am pursuing for
Hawaiians that are unfortunate. And, does it say 16 minutes I have?
CHAIR BAlSA: That's it, darling.
MS. PARKER: Okay. Mahalo.
CHAIR BAlSA: Ms. Parker, if you'd hold on for a minute. Are there any questions for the
testifier? Member Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Chair. And good morning, Ms. Parker.
MS. PARKER: Good morning.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: If you don't mind, you mentioned that you are from Huelo
and you, you also have ohana in Keanae.
MS. PARKER: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: And for me it's always important for me to know who the
ohana is, if you don't mind disclosing that? Who's, who's your ohana in Keanae?
MS. PARKER: The Mitchell family.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you.
MS. PARKER: It's my grandmother's side.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you for that. And-MS. PARKER: And the Taua.
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: --and who?
MS. PARKER: And the Taua family. Kelii-COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
MS. PARKER: --is my uncle, he is a professor at the community college.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right. That's Kelii?
MS. PARKER: Uh huh.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS:
Transient Vacation...

Alright. Okay. And you say that you have a TVR, a

MS. PARKER: No, I don't. I am ...
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: You don't, but you...
MS. PARKER: I'm researching into it.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: I see.
MS. PARKER: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: I see. And you think that this will help your family sustain
themselves?
MS. PARKER: Yes. The ohana that is unfortunate because they are not knowledgeable enough.
That's why I'm going through these grant writings and teaching them how to run it and
so forth. I've worked with contractors in previous jobs, also. I've worked a lot of
networking. I have a lot of experience. They cannot work in a hotel. They're not
educated enough and they don't fit in there. A lot of them have turned to sovereignty.
They don't know any outlet out and we don't have to do that. We can teach them to be
self-sufficient on their land and be comfortable. Because a lot of them have a lot of talent
in growing as Hawaiian fanners, we're from, our poi, we had poi patches, and also from
healing arts that we've learned down from generation to generation to generation has
been passed on.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: And do you live down what Huelo people call the Door of
Faith Road or are you in another area?
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MS. PARKER: Yes, I do. My daddy is the last caretaker of Kaulanapueo Church, it's a
Hawaiian church. And our house is the oldest house in Huelo that was built by my
great-great-grandfather.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. So as far as the Transient Vacation Rentals in Huelo
especially in the area you are, you don't find any disturbance to that kind of lifestyle that
you have lived there and would like to live with Transient Vacation Rentals being in the
area as far as-MS. PARKER: No.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: --traffic or people?
MS. PARKER: There's, there's not really any traffic and I have approached a lot of these
people. Because we would like it to be kept as old Hawaii and they have complied to
that. The tourists that come by because we have a lot sneaking on our aina, we have
talked to them and all they want is the simple aloha, and so we welcome them. If it gets
out of hand, which it never has gotten out of hand, I will go directly to the vacation rental
but they have been very, very nice. They have even made sanctuaries for our birds and
they have left Hawaii as it is.
It doesn't look like a lot of areas that you see so modernized and so different. It is still

very aloha there and we want to open it up, when we do have these little hales we want to
open it up not just to tourists but to the locals. Because we have a lot of stressed-out local
people that I've been working with. Lots of stressed-out in this society where we're
complying to survive in a very high economy place and also to have a little peace of
mind. And Huelo is very, very mystic, it's one of the last mystic places, Huelo and
Keanae.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: And let me ask you, what is your feelings or your mana '0
and position on being sure that these TVRs get their permits and, and run a legal
operation?
MS. PARKER: I'm very for that, I trust the Maui Council that you would kokua and also handle
that where it is not abused. Because there, as we all know, there's a lot of people that are
abusing this. I worked a little, I have worked part-time which I still am now -- that's how
I studied vacation rental is I believe in going into the environment -- for less than
20 hOUTS. And I have worked in this one in Haiku and I have also worked with the
neighbors around to kind of get a feel. 'Cause this is my research and the owners here
and I hope she doesn't mind. But I have gone in for the purpose of doing this Hawaiian
grants. And I have noticed that everyone is very sweet and they take care of it
themselves. Nobody else comes in and does it.
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But I have also worked for a high-end area where these people don't even live here, so I
see two ends of it and we've got to make it more localized to me. We're, there's so many
people that are abusing it.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
being here from Huelo. Aloha.

Mahalo, Ms. Parker, for your testimony and for

MS. PARKER: Nice to see you again.
CHAIR BAlSA: Any more questions for the testifier? If not, thank you very much. And thank
you for coming back. Kelli Braxton, is Kelli here? Thank you and good morning. And
Kelli will be followed by Fredrick Honig. Sorry.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: I took time off from work to come down and I can't even testify.
Is that right?
CHAIR BAlSA: We made an announcement at our last meeting that the only persons that would
be allowed to testify this morning would be the folks who had signed up and were unable
to testify.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Who made that decision?
CHAIR BAlSA: It ...
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Can that be overturned? I mean I've taken time off work to come
down here, three minutes, it seems like the least the Council can do.
CHAIR BAlSA: I'm, I'm going to ask Corp. Counsel for a ruling. Corp., Mr. Moto.
MR. MOTO: Madam Chair, the, the legal question I was asked on Tuesday was concerning the
fact that on Tuesday when your Committee decided to close the public testimony they
had still, there were apparently three people who had already signed up at that point. And
it was perceived that possibly they may have been misinformed or mislead because there
had been some indications or statements made earlier in the meeting that perhaps the
meeting was going to continue and testimony continue on a later date. And those three
apparently left, perhaps in reliance or after hearing that.
However, the Committee did vote to, not vote, but they did have a consensus under your
leadership to close the public testimony and accept thereafter only the testimony of the
three individuals who had signed up at that point. Your Committee Staff, not I
personally, but your legal analyst called the Office of Information Practices to discuss
whether this practice on the Committee's part was sufficient or compliant under the
sunshine law. My answer is that the answer he was given was yes, it is. But, your Staff
could address that more directly since I did not participate in that conversation.
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CHAIR BAlSA: Thank you very much. Any comments from the Committee Staff?
MR. RAATZ: Thank you, Madam Chair. The Corporation Counsel is, is accurate. I did speak
with the OIP Staff Attorney Lorna Aratani and explained to her what was said in the
Committee meeting on Tuesday, and she advised that the fairest approach consistent with
the Sunshine Law's principles would be to limit testimony today to the three individuals
who had signed up previously as was announced at the Committee meeting on Tuesday.
CHAIR BAlSA: Thank you very much. And I am really sorry, sir, but it's what happened.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: That's, that's okay. And what's hilarious is like the time you
guys spent ... (inaudible) ... Thank you, anyway. You guys have a good day.
CHAIR BAlSA: Thank you very much. Okay. Our next testifier was, might be Kelli Braxton.
Is Kelli here? Not here. How about Fredrick Honig? Not here. Okay. Well that
concludes our testimony .

. . .END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY. ..
CHAIR BAlSA: And now I would like to ask the Administration representatives to provide
comments in response to correspondence I set, I sent after the January 30th meeting.
Specifically, I asked Corp. Counsel for legal advice regarding enforcement policies and I
asked the Planning Director for enforcement and budgetary information and for an
inventory of Transient Vacation Rentals. Mr. Hunt, would you like to take the lead?
MR. HUNT: Thank you, Madam Chair. The Planning Department received two memos from
the Planning Committee. One was involving a request for information and inventory
regarding approved TVRs and pending TVRs. And the other one was in regards to
budgeting and enforcement of the TVR policy.
I'll address the inventory memo first. The Planning Department replied that according to
the Kauaian Institute Study of 2005, there were 800 single-family units used for Transient
Vacation Rental purposes. In terms of the number of Transient Vacation Rentals that are
in operation pursuant to a conditional permit our inventory shows 24 units.
CHAIR BAlSA: Mr. Hunt, could you repeat those numbers, please?
MR. HUNT: The Kauaian Institute Study of August 2005, noted that in July 2005, there were
800 single-family units used for Transient Vacation Rental purposes on Maui. There's a
number of units that are within recognized destination resort areas on Maui as follows:
45 units in Kaanapali, 30 units in Kapalua, 16 units in Makena, and 63 units in Wailea.
In response to how many Transient Vacation Rental units are in operation pursuant to a
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conditional pennit, our inventory showed 24 units are currently approved under the
conditional pennit process.
In response to how many unpermitted Transient Vacation Rental operations are in
oper..., pardon me, units are in operation you can simply do the math that if we've got
24 that are permitted and over 800 that are operating, there's a large number that are
operating without pennits. However, some of those 800 are probably allowed within the
resort areas. In response to the question how many conditional pennit applications are
currently pending, we have 66 conditional pennit applications that are pending that have
not been fully processed. The applications would result in 166 units being approved if all
these applications were approved.
And this information is all outlined in
February 12th Department response.
CHAIR BAlSA: Thank you, Mr. Hunt. Chair would like to note the attendance of two more
Committee Members: Council Chair Riki Hokama and Member Mike Molina.
Welcome.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Good morning.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR BAlSA: Thank you for being here.
MR. HUNT: In response to the request for budgeting information regarding enforcement
officers and then enforcement, we sent two memos. The first memo again, dated
February 12th, notes that the Department asked in previous years for a supervising zoning
inspector for both Fiscal Year 2005 and Fiscal Year 2006. These requests were not made
part of the Mayor's submittal to the County Council. So apparently the Mayor in going
through their budget process felt those weren't appropriate or there wasn't funding to
support them. I wasn't here at that time.
In response to our existing positions, there are five zoning inspector positions in the
Department right now. Tomorrow we, I'd like to announce we do have a new zoning
inspector coming on. That's the good news, the bad news is it's merely a transfer from
the Public Works Department. So we're robbing Peter to pay Paul. The planners are
happy anyways.
This is the first time in over 2 ~ years that we will have all five of these positions filled
and it should also be noted that one of those positions, one of the five positions is only
part-time due to medical reasons. Another position is part-time in terms of enforcement
because half their time is allocated to regulating farm plans. So in essence we have three
and then three full inspectors as of tomorrow and then two half-time inspectors. And
that's for all three islands for every conceivable violation or complaint that comes
through the Planning Department.
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The Zoning Enforcement Division, which is responsible for inspection, notes that since
2001, the division received 2,700 complaints of which 75 or 2.7 percent involved
short-term rentals. In the fIrst half of this fIscal year, not the calendar year, but the fIscal
year, the Division received 545 complaints with 18 of those involving short-term rentals
or 3.3 percent.
In regards to the enforcement policy of the Department I would like to note that the
enforcement policy has been evolving or has been the result of several Administrations.
This goes back many years. Because we have a new Administration and new Planning
Director, we -- and we're listening to the concerns that have been expressed from the
Council and from the citizens -- we are undergoing a review of the existing policy and
exploring options for revisions to the existing policy. And I will go through the existing
policy for everyone.
Currently there, there are three ways that the Zoning Enforcement Division can become
aware of a potential TVR violation: through complaints, by chance, or under, under their
own initiative. And currently complaints are only accepted if the complainant provides
contact information and this is due to the concern that we don't want complaints being
fIled frivolously or through harassment. There's also, it also helps in the investigative
phase of the complaint to have someone you can refer back to and get information. And
if the complaint ever ends up in court, we have witnesses. So it's important to have a
contact person regarding complaints. And I believe that's a Countywide policy, not just a
Zoning and Enforcement Division policy. The building inspectors also follow the same
procedure. We, we don't respond to anonymous complaints. We can review that. At
this point the Planning Department believes this is a good approach based on the reasons
we just outlined.
The, the zoning inspectors can also become aware of a TVR violation just by chance if
they happen to be driving by and see something suspicious. Perhaps there's regularly
rental cars and people unloading luggage day after day after day or whatever. Under that
circumstance, and also the building inspectors sometimes inform the zoning inspectors of
the same situation. They happen to observe something that looks suspicious. In that
instance the, the zoning inspectors will conduct research and if it, if the research seems to
support the idea that there is a violation, then they'll pursue that.
The, the third option is zoning inspectors could initiate their own investigations such as
reviewing websites, reviewing newspaper ads, phonebook listings, even going
undercover and making phone calls and that kind of thing. Due to concerns expressed
during previous Administrations the inspectors were told not to initiate the investigation
ofTVR violations on their own. Also, there's been concerns expressed from Corporation
Counsel that there's certain evidence standards, legal standards that have to be met before
we can start pursuing certain violation actions. Entering a home, those kind of things.
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A use violation is a little more difficult to investigate than a building violation. A lot of
building violations you can stand on the road and see the physical building. You can take
a picture, it's quick. A use violation is a little tougher, just 'cause you see someone
hauling luggage into a house does that mean it's a TVR? I recently had my family come
and staying with me, they were hauling luggage in. So it gets trickier. And that's where
the evidence standards come in.
The, the Planning Department is exploring with the ZAED inspectors whether we should
initiate our own investigations in order to send a message that illegal TVRs, if found in
violations, even if no complaints are registered, will be pursued and we are exploring
that. There are some ramifications that we have to iron out, we need to talk to
Corporation Counsel a little bit more. But just so everyone knows we are considering
that at this point. I'll even go so far as to say as we're headed down that road at this point
but I don't want to make a commitment because we haven't thoroughly analyzed it with
all the agencies involved.
In regards to fines, the way the existing process works now is if a ZAED, if a zoning
inspector believes there is reasonable evidence that a violation exists they have to issue a
notice of warning. And State law requires two notices of warning be issued prior to a
notice of violation. The current policy is if a applicant comes in for a application to
resolve that violation, then the violation is no longer pursued and the thought being that if
the application would resolve the violation why consume staff time and court time and
couns ... , legal counsel time with a violation if we simply process the application and it
goes through.
There's some problems with this process and the Department is exploring changing the
process. The problem with just simply allowing a, or not pursuing a violation is if the
application submitted is ... sometimes the applications can take years to get approval.
So in essence we're allowing a TVR to operate without a permit under the assumption
that well, perhaps it could get approved in the future. The department is considering, and
we're, and I'll say we're going down the road of saying if we discover a TVR and it's
unpermitted, we would warn them to cease operation and advise them or encourage them
to get an application and get a permit through the application process. However, until the
permit is approved, they are not to operate. And again we are exploring that as a
possibility.
Based on previous Administrations there are a number of applications that have been
pending, shall we say, and held in abeyance is the term that has been used. And what has
happened here is the instance where I was just talking about where if someone was
encouraged to file an application, they come in, they file the application. The Planning
Department has been holding these in abeyance unless specifically requested or unless
the complaint, unless the application was generated by a complaint involving a nuisance.
We have been holding these in abeyance until further policy direction is cleared up.
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And the thought on this was that with limited staff resources and limited Planning
Commission time, why tie up staff and Commission processing an application, 'cause
several of these applications that are pending could just be withdrawn. We've talked to a
number of applications that say well, you know, if it doesn't, if the, if the policy ends up
going down that road and I'm not allowed I'll just, I'll just withdraw it. So the thought
again was why, why consume staff time and Planning Commission time if some of these
would likely just be withdrawn.
The Planning Department is reviewing that policy of holding these in abeyance, and were
discussing whether we should start processing these applications. And we have not come
to a firm conclusion but we're headed down that road at this point I will say. In that case
people need to be aware that there are a number in abeyance, I just listed the number
previously, and it'll take some time to start processing these, it won't, they won't, they
won't happen overnight. We're looking at maybe we can group them together in
geographic areas, so the Community Plan provisions are similar and maybe there's a way
we can expedite these. But again there's certain bottlenecks, there's only so much time
on the agenda for the Planning Commission, there's only so much time on the agendas
for the County Council.
Finally, there's a, there's a bill regarding policy and Joe Alueta will speak to the
Department's position regarding policy. But strictly from an enforcement position and,
and we certainly understand that, that a, that a policy needs to look at a number of factors,
but if you're just looking at enforcement, the Planning Department believes that
enforcement would be enhanced if there were clear and distinct zones where TVRs were
allowed and outside of those zones TVRs were not allowed even through a conditional
permit process.
And the, the thinking there is an illegal TVR operator may be more hesitant to operate or
scoff at the law if they know that there's absolutely no chance they can get a TVR in that
zone. I think the thought is that there's a feeling that neighbors aren't sure whether that's
a legal TVR or not. Well, they could get, perhaps they've gotten a conditional permit and
maybe they could get a permit. So there's a lot of ambiguity and that ambiguity lends
itself to illegal or unpermitted TVR operations. So again the Planning Department in
terms of enforcement believes it would be better to clearly delineate where they're
allowed, where they're not allowed and not allow them subject to a conditional permit in
terms of enforcement. ... (change tape, start 1B). .. In conjunction with that tightening,
'cause that is, that is a tight policy, we're suggesting that the processing for B&Bs and
TVRs in those areas where they are allowed be streamlined so that the approval of it
would be more than Administrative level, would not require a public hearing, perhaps
there could be some trigger mechanism where if 40 percent of the neighbors request it or,
or whatever.
But generally speaking to drop all B&Bs and TVRs in those areas, where they are
allowed, drop those down to Administrative procedure so that we could process them
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faster and it would consume less of the Commission and Council's time. And with that, I
can turn it over to Joe Alueta regarding the Planning Commission recommendation.
CHAIR BAlSA: Thank you, Director. Would you like to start questions now?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Just on, what the Director-CHAIR BAlSA: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: --has shared with us this morning so far-CHAIR BAlSA: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: --Chair.
CHAIR BAlSA: Floor is open for questions.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Just a few questions.
CHAIR BAlSA: Surely. Chair Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Mr. Director, when you share with us the, your enforcement
comments this morning, my, my comment back to you is that, or my question to you is
are we applying then under your management, your administration of your Department
looking at enforcement on a consistent and, and fair basis? I'm not just talking about
vacation rentals. Whether it be for non-permitted other business uses, whether it be not,
you know, structures that have been built without building permits.
You know, I'm just trying to see, have a sense to see if we are going to be enforcing the
Code fairly instead of just targeting vacation rentals. I know this is a subject of what is
before this Committee this morning. But I, I'm asking about your approach to
enforcement because we have a lot of problems in other areas besides vacation rentals.
MR. HUNT: In terms of fair enforcement the Department could not support anything other than
fair enforcement. There are time constraints in terms of enforcement. We can't, the
fairest approach would be to go out and notice every existing TVR at the same time on
the same day. We can't, we can't do that. So you have to hit them one at a time and
hopefully the word gets out, so there's those kinds of issues in terms of fairness. In terms
of equity if the, if the situation is the same comparable to another one when we get to that
one we'll treat it the same way.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: And that's good enough for me, Director. You know, I just
want to know that your, your approach would be consistent throughout the, regarding the
Code and that, you know, that's what I expect our, our inspectors to be fair but to do
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enforcement regardless of what the infraction or violation may be -- that we treat
enforcement in the same manner. It would be my, my hope for your Department or your
Division on that.
My other question, comment, uh, question that I have regarding your comment and I
think it's very, a good suggestion. That if we make it clear in what zoning categories
certain things will not be permitted, and that, and right now we, it's very clear in Code by
ordinance unless you are in a resort zone category there's no vacation rentals. It's
already in the books. But you're asking us to make it clear that even a permit process
would not be allowed for this request. Is, is that what you're asking the Committee this
morning?
MR. HUNT: We're suggesting that, that approach would send a clear message and enhance
enforcement.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Well, I would hope then that your Department would
consider supporting State legislation currently being reviewed and moving forward in the
House particularly that unless it's permitted by a State statute in Chapter, I believe, 205
which is agricultural lands there can be no other permitted uses. So for the County we
have, we have no choice, if it's not in the statute it cannot be done. So that makes it very
clear. And if you're looking at that type of guidelines then at least we're aware of what,
what you're talking to us this morning about, Mr. Director.
MR. HUNT: And I, I think what our concern was is that with the provision for a conditional
permit, which allows uses that are not specifically listed in a zone, there's some
confusion that people can come in and get a conditional permit even though it's not
allowed. And so perhaps a clear statement or an ordinance adoption that says the
conditional permit process is not allowed for TVRs in certain zones or whatever. And,
and I'm just thinking out loud, you know, I don't want to make policy in a discussion.
But you can see what we're thinking. And could I respond to the fairness comment
earlier?
CHAIR BAlSA: Yes. Go ahead.

MR. HUNT: Just to be upfront we're still exploring the difference between a use violation and a
building violation. A building permit, if you have to come in, if you're discovered in
violation you have to come in after-the-fact. And so there's an after-the-fact violation
anyways. For a small operator it may be difficult or it may be really punitive for
someone who unknowingly built an addition or something and then we go and fine them
until they remove the building. I think it's easier to tell a TVR operator stop their
operation until they get a permit rather than to tell someone who unknowingly built a
building they need to remove the building before they get a permit if the building permit
would allow that use. And, so I guess all I'm saying is it's complex.
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COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I can let you know, Mr. Director, that the County has in, in
Lahaina in the historic district had a building taken down that did not have a building
permit. So it, it has happened.
MR. HUNT: I think the analysis that came up in that discussion was if, if it appears at first blush
that the building would be allowed by pennits, like it's allowed in the zone, it meets
setbacks, it meets height, it's just that they didn't get a permit, do we still want that
heavy-handed approach? And I don't have an answer, I'm just trying to be upfront that
it's a complex situation and your question about fairness will need to be talked about in
that discussion.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I appreciate your comments, Mr. Director. Thank you.
CHAIR BAlSA: Thank you, Mr. Hunt. Any other questions from the Members? Mr. Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Chair. This is for the Director also. I'm interested
in, you know, when I heard your comments about you don't accept anonymous
complaints. And you said maybe other Departments have the same policy. However, the
Police accepts anonymous complaints, Public Works Highways accepts anonymous
complaints. And the reason for that as we were witness to in one of the testimonies, is
that the person said by being here and speaking openly in a public forum that testifier was
harassed for that testimony by phone calls, by drive-bys so that's the reason I think
anonymous complaints are important. That you're not discouraging people to report
things that they want to report. So I would ask you to, you know, think about that policy.
The second one is which Chair Hokama I think also touched on was when you hold
applications in abeyance, we also had a testifier that showed us a long list of applications
that are in abeyance. So if we continue to just have them apply and then let them
continue to operate, are we complying with our own ordinances? So I would also ask
you to think about that, that it's like asking, you know, allowing somebody to build
something then later telling them to apply for it. And I think if the impression by the
public is that we allow this to happen then it'll encourage it to grow. So I just would like
to ask you for your comments and possibly your consideration of, you know, these two
items that you mentioned.
MR. HUNT: There's pros and cons to, to most public policy issues. On the issue of anonymous
complaints I hear what you're saying about people being afraid. Our Zoning Inspectors
get, receive threats against them when they're doing their job. So it's certainly easy to
understand how a neighbor who has to live next to someone who they, they file a
complaint against would have some fear. So you have to weigh that on one side versus,
and I don't mean to repeat myself but the discussions that we had involved well, then if
you can be anonymous, you can just, if you don't get along with your neighbor you just
send in these complaints and send out the inspectors. And it would be used to harass.
We ... I think it's fair to review that policy and I'll, I'll commit to reviewing the policy.
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you, Mr. Director. And a final question about the
anonymous complaints. You also mentioned that you look at anonymous complaints as
not having the witness should the process go to court. And the thing about investigating
complaints is that if your inspector go, goes to inspect or investigate a complaint then that
inspector becomes the witness, you don't need a caller to be the witness. So, I ask you
also to consider that. Mahalo, Chair.
CHAIR BAlSA: Thank you very much. Anybody else? Any Members? Any further questions
at this time or sh ... , Member Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Madam Chair. Mr. Director, just to follow up on
Member Medeiros' question with regard to anonymous complaints. Does the Department
take a policy where if a person calls in a complaint they give you their name but they
wish for it to be ... I mean can you still accept the complaint even though if the person
requests privacy?
MR. HUNT: As I understand it the, we have a permitting process, a software program and we
will keep the name off the software program in that instance. So there may be some
latitude or some flexibility.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:
whatnot?

Rather than somebody just saying without their name and

MR. HUNT: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: But if they're willing to tell you, at least tell you their names.
MR. HUNT: Here's, here's my name and phone number but please don't publicize.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Right.
MR. HUNT: I think we do that.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay.
MR. HUNT: Let me check on that.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you. Thank you, Madam Chair.
CHAIR BAlSA: Thank you. I believe that, that practice is done in a lot of places and in a lot of
instances where they report, the name of the person who made the report is never
revealed. But yet they are on file with the agency that promises to keep them, that
confidential. Mr. Hunt, shall we go ahead with Mr. Alueta?
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MR. HUNT: That's fine with me.
CHAIR BAlSA: Please. Mr. Alueta. And, Members, as we go along if you hear something and
would like to ask a question, please let me know. Because that way we may remember
better than when we have to go back. So please stop me. Go ahead.
MR. ALUETA: Thank you. Thank you, Madam Chair. Good morning, Council Members.
First off the Committee sent down the resolution on April 10, 2006. The primary thing
that the resolution did was it, we consider it attempted to blur the lines between what a
transient vacation rental is and what a bed and breakfast is. And the Department has a
strict interpretation of what a bed and breakfast is, and that is, as we indicated, someone
living within the same structure, same dwelling unit and renting out units within as
opposed to what a transient vacation rental is which is the rental of a stand-alone unit or
units with, within a separate building.
So that's, that's where this Bill came down. In our, like I said, in our review the
Department did make some recommendations to the three commissions that reviewed
this, and that was primarily, one, we recommended denial of the proposed amendments to
1964 with the exception that Business and the Rural District be included within the bed
and breakfast permitting process.
Secondly we also recommended that there be some updates to the restrictions and
standards section within the bed and breakfast provisions as well as updating the notice of
hearing for the bed and breakfast sections. And this is within, on Page 15 of the Staff
report that was remitted to the Commissions. Department also and as part of your
resolution, the resolution included bills that amended, made amendments to several
sections of the Code. Another section of the Code was 19.29 and we did recommend
approval of that, and that was, I believe that's the Rural District.
There was also a recommendation for an amendment to 19.30A which is agricultural, the
County Agricultural District. We recommended denial of the amendments that were
proposed to that, that section of the ordinance. That was our recommendation to the
Council, I mean to the Planning Commissions. We also felt that the removal of the
restrictions that limits bed and breakfast operations to only existing single-family
residents within the Business District should be removed. We also recommended that the
Commissions voice their interest in the Council reviving the Service Business Residential
zoning district ordinance that would allow for bed and breakfasts and transient vacation
rentals within this district.
Just a background, SBR district exists primarily in the Hana urban core. And also
consider amending the zoning districts, the Business zoning districts such to allow for
TVRs and small hotels within those districts within the Wailuku Redevelopment, similar
to the Wailuku Redevelopment Code. Currently, the Wailuku Redevelopment Code
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allows for small, small inns of 20 rooms or less as an outright permitted use. You know,
once again, we're looking at trying to alleviate some of the pressures for people going
into the, into non-permitted areas and that is to kind of a, we're looking at a balancing act
and that was our recommendations to the, to the three commissions, to the three
commISSIOns.
The Maui Planning Commission held two meetings on it and they, and though they did
vote to adopt the Planning Department's recommendations as outlined in the Staff report.
The Molokai Commission voted to recommend denial of the proposed amendments that,
that came down from Council, and recommended that the matter, matter be discussed
during the General Plan process. Lanai, similar, they voted to recommend denial of the
proposed amendments and the matter should be discussed in the General Plan process.
Hana Advisory Committee, they were actually the first one to receive the, because of
scheduling, they were the fITSt to receive the proposals from the Council. And this was
done, and their, they reviewed it prior to any recommendations from the Department. So
I'll just want to preface that, they did recommend to deny the proposed amendments that
was sent down by the Council. But they recommended that the County should hold a
series of workshops in Hana to develop a Hana vacation rental ordinance that all land use
and zoning ordinances be enforced within the Hana district regarding TVRs. So to them
they, at least with the Hana Advisory Committee, they were adamant that there should be
enforcement right away. And then prior to any and then, and then bring, go out to Hana
and actually discuss the issues with them.
That's all I have as far as the reporting on what transpired at the different commissions
and advisory boards. Thank you.
CHAIR BAlSA: Questions for Mr. Alueta? Member Johnson.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yes, Joe. Under HRS 205 under agriculture with regard to, I guess,
the actual operation and the way that the law basically reads is that 51 percent of the land
must be in agricultural use and that the primary dwelling, which is a farm dwelling, be in
support of the agriculture activity on the land. The secondary dwelling is a farm worker
dwelling. Is that the primary reason why you're saying Transient Vacation Rentals
would not be consistent with HRS 205? Or is there some other reason?
MR. ALUETA: Yes. And I believe in our Staff report we outlined the reasons why that a
vacation rental would not be permissible consistent with the State law with regards to
permitted uses within the State agricultural district. During the, during the processing
and review of this Bill as well as going through different, various workshops. There are
areas where they have legitimate, where people are actually legitimately farming, they are
attempting, and some of them "subsidize" some of their farming activities with transient
vacation rentals. And that wouldn't be allowed, we don't feel that would be allowed.
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There are some that are legitimate farmers that are operating what we call sort of
classrooms, educational, having onsite, on-hand educational programs that are recognized
by other government agencies. And we feel that having, you know, creating such a
classroom environment where you have people, where you have people coming from
around the world to learn about different growing techniques and living on the farm. And
some of them paying, you know, what we call, you call transient vacation fee. Those
should be separated and those should be reviewed on a case-by-case basis because it is
very much ripe for abuse.
And so it's very, and so we feel that those issues and the State allows for State Special
Use Permits. We feel that, that should be the appropriate venue within the agricultural
district for those types of operations, which are legitimate ag, which are, which have
people coming to the property and staying in some form of educational or classroom
environment to learn about the agricultural operations. But that should be reviewed on a
case-by-case through the State Special Use Permit. We cannot fmd any justification
within the current laws, policies that would allow the liberalization that was proposed
within the ordinance that came down to the, to the Commissions for review.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Okay. So, when they apply for a State Special Use Permit there
would be no review then on the part of the Council? It would only be going through the
State? Or do we also have to issue some type of a permit? Because I know we have at
times we're reviewing something where they already have a State permit and then we're
also reviewing it. But is that conditional use?
MR. ALUETA: In, in some instances, okay, if, if the project is less than 15 acres-VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Okay.
MR. ALUETA: --property is less than 15 acres it does fall within the review of the Planning
Commissions to take action with the States Special Use Permit. There are some items
listed within the, within the existing 19.30A, the agricultural ordinance, that basically
says if you qualify for one of these things and you get a State Special Use Permit you
meet the requirements for a, for the, the State or for the County-side Special Use Permit.
But in most instances we've considered at least the transient vacation rentals that have
come before us. We, we do not recognize them as being a special use, special permit
under the County Code we've considered them conditional permits.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Okay.
MR. ALUETA: And that's the reason why, but, you know, like I said it's, I don't want to split
hairs here, but we have to draw, when someone comes in if we think it's, it falls under, it
should be a conditional permit, we'll send them through the conditional permit process.
If we think that they would meet the criteria under the agricultural district as being a
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County Special Use Permit we would then process the State and the County special as, as
being one.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Okay. And with regard to Mr. Hunt's comment in terms of an
Administrative decision instead of it coming through this long protracted process where it
goes before Planning Commission then Council. If to streamline the process there were
instances where these accommodations could be, I guess, construed as legal then
administratively is that permissible the way the State law is structured currently? As
Mr....
MR. ALUETA: No.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: So it's not?
MR. ALUETA: No.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: So ...
MR. ALUETA: What, what we, Mr. Hunt and I have talked about this, my boss and I have
talked. And we've, and he'll probably correct me if I'm misspeaking but the way we're,
what we're thinking of as far as trying to identify the locations and one was the
destination resort areas. And it's, in the, in the Department's report that went to the
commissions we talk about that, that within ... there are single-family residences within
the destination resort areas.
And currently under the code, right, even though single-family residences within
destination resort areas could not do transient vacation rentals. It's only within the hot ... ,
if the, if it's a single-family, residence-zoned hotel then yes it would be allowed. So the
destination area, designation doesn't give you carte blanche as far as vacation rentals.
What we're proposing is that because the destination resort areas are designated for the
tourism base and that the single-family residences and multi-family units that are within
those destinations areas are marketed and geared toward off, offshore market.
We want to encourage, I mean that's the areas that we, we've designated and hope to
establish or encourage offshore markets to purchase. Okay. And we don't feel that it
would adversely have an impact on the local housing market if those are used as transient
vacation rentals. Okay. And, and we would want to identify those destination resorts as
the exclusive areas that TVRs could be located.
Under the existing, and now, and then the other areas that we have is what we call bed
and breakfasts, which as I indicated you live within the same dwelling unit. And it's a,
it's a difficult job. So those who, who operate them, you know, hats off to them, it's not
an easy job. And you have to have a love for it. So we don't feel that ... right now only
up two bedrooms, if you rent two bedrooms out it's an administrative permit. Up to six,
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and then you can go up to six bedrooms under a Type 3 permit. We believe that we
should make all ... and there should be only one type and that is a bed and breakfast
permit up to six bedrooms. And it should be, it should be handled administratively, it
should not have to go through the Planning Commission process and have a public
hearing.
And we, and as indicated we would look at, they would do a, there is currently a notice
procedure, so if we receive so many complaints or concerns from the neighbors then it
would be at the Director's discretion if a threshold is met that a public hearing be held for
that permit. And so we feel that, and we feel that is, that would one, streamline the
permit process for the bed and breakfast permits, would and maybe also, by that means
we have other people who want to do bed and breakfasts come in to do it and become
legal. It would also be kind of a carrot toward those who are operating illegal Transient
Vacation Rentals to possibly try to convert over to a legal means of the bed-and-breakfast
style of operation.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: And I appreciate you differentiating. Still with regard to ag land
though, in terms of the bed and breakfast, are there areas -- I know you just, outlined a
scenario for us earlier that would technically permit that type of thing -- but are you, are
you also saying that, that would be permitted - a bed and breakfast in an agricultural
operation under certain conditions?
MR. ALUETA: I think State law makes it difficult. Under, State law makes it very clear that the
primary purpose of the agricultural land is ago Seems common. You'd think it seems
simple. And, and that the structure that is located within the agricultural district, right,
the primary function is that it's to service the farm. Okay. And I think that's where
people get mistaken is that it's called a farm dwelling. It's not called a single-family
house, it's called a farm dwelling. You know, so if people can't make that distinction
there that's why I think that it's difficult now for some people who have, you know,
bought high-priced ag land to build a home. Right. And because they thought they could
build a home there and they're not building a farm dwelling.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Well, I, I'm, I'm particularly interested in this because I want to see
how operations like Ulupalakua Ranch or an agri-tourism business like Surfing Goat
Dairy where people want a farm experience, they want to come there, they maybe just,
you know, had an experience as a youngster where they came to a farm-type operation
and they want to go out, they want to cut herbs, they want a fresh farm breakfast. Not all
of those things necessarily are going to be in a B&B. Ulupalakua Ranch is one example
where I think they have like smaller units. How do you conceive of those kinds of
operations given what you've said, having some room to maneuver?
MR. ALUETA: Once again you have to look at what the State law is, as to whether it can
maneuver within that function. And two, also you have to look at, you know, the County
side. And the current process that has been established is a conditional permit process.
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Well, the fear that we have is that, you know, you have some very good instances where
those things make sense. But it doesn't make sense to basically eliminate all
impediments to getting the permits for those few and opening the flood gates to the ones
you don't want. And I think that, that's where, that's why the conditional permit process
was, that there's going to be, there's going to be a few of those gems or, you know, ones
that really sort of have a justification for it. And then you create that, and you establish a
conditional permit and, and it's under the purview of the Council at this point.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Okay. So still you would still say those would be conditionally
permitted based on a case-by-case basis?
MR. ALUET A: Yes. And, and what I'm saying is that the, you have a conflict between,
because the County has their provisions and the State is moving actually in more of a
restrictive. Lasts year's bill, which I, I cite in my Staff report to, in the Department's
report, that passed. Okay. And that basically excludes overnight accommodations. If, if
an agricultural or, you know, tourism-type operation is established that's the policy that
the, the, the State was giving to the County. I'm not aware of the newest bill going
through the Leg. and I will, I will check that when I get back to my... ( change tape, start
2A) . .. what other restrictions, but you must understand that the County has sole
jurisdiction as far as its powers to regulate -- exclusive powers -- to the urban core, okay,
has a little more leeway. And so once you get into the Rural and Agricultural Districts
you still have the big brother of the State establishing your envelope. And what's
happened I think is that where it's been ambiguous the State has allowed the Counties to
be specific or define certain things. And I think that the State has seen some of the things
that we've made interpretations on, in particular in Agricultural District, and I think that
is the result, that has been, the result has been the State is now trying to-VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Reign.
MR. ALUET A: --give, reign, yeah. You can say reign in but just say look you, we, you have
the urban areas, we have these areas and we're going to set the parameters and they're
trying to narrow that box for the counties. And it, it may be good or bad depending on
your perspective, but I think you got to understand that yeah even if we say a nuclear
power plant is okay in the agricultural district the State may say, no, it's not. Okay. So,
we can, we can always be more restrictive within the State and Rural Districts. We
cannot be less restrictive than the State laws.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: And I, I appreciate that, Mr. Alueta. Because I think that what I'm
sensing and I know other Members what they feel but right now we are between a rock
and a hard place. Because there are some very legitimate uses that have been established,
some really historic properties that have traditionally operated ranching operations that, I
mean, just are so important to the community. And I don't know, I guess I would look at
it with trying to if for no other reason even just cap the number or rezone or do whatever
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we have to do to legitimize those operations that we feel are really important. So thank
you for your infonnation and I know it doesn't please everyone. Thank you.
CHAIR BAlSA: Thank you. Any additional questions for Mr. Alueta or we'll proceed. Okay.
Mr. Moto, your comments, please.
MR. MOTO: Madam Chair, I'm going to begin by addressing the specific questions that were
posed to our office in a memo dated February 2,2007. These apparently were questions
generated out of your, out of an earlier meeting on the same subject. And they, they were
actually multiple questions asked but they basically fell into two basic categories. One
had to do with providing advice on the extent of the Planning Director's authority, if any,
to establish an enforcement policy with regard to transient vacation rentals. And the
second set of questions basically dealt with the issue of selective enforcement of
violations and whether selective enforcement would expose the County to liability.
Both of these questions could be the subject of very long memos and so I'm going to try
to be brief. And, and the nature of these questions were such that it was not possible to
write a memo in time for this meeting. Also, I want to point out that these questions were
not, were posed without any specific facts or circumstances. In other words, they were
just rather broad questions, so for the record, my responses should be interpreted in that
light. They're of a general nature; obviously, when examining any particular fact or
circumstance one must -- or a particular case -- one must consider the, those facts and
circumstances.
With regard to the Planning Director's authority I begin by, with the County Charter,
which of course says that it's the duty of the Planning Director to prepare, administer,
and enforce zoning ordinances, zoning maps and regulations and any amendments or
modifications thereto. I don't know, of course by implication that means the zoning
ordinances that govern the types of uses in the various land use districts and zoning
districts established here in the County of Maui.
Looking at case law in general the, the, whether a County official like a Planning
Director has a specific duty to act in any particular circumstance will be detennined in
large part by what State law says and what applicable local zoning ordinances say. So
one must turn to State law and local zoning ordinances to determine exactly how the
official is to exercise his duties.
Here in the County of Maui the primary chapter on enforcement of zoning violations, on
zoning law or -- let me rephrase that -- the enforcement of zoning laws and the
prosecution of violations is set forth in Chapter 19.530 of the Maui County Code, it's
entitled Enforcement. It, it has a lot of procedures in it and, and various points, in some
ways however, it's not very, it's not very detailed or as it could be or in addressing
different types of situations.
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In, in a section within that chapter dealing with administrative enforcement ... I'm
actually, this, this chapter is in need of some updating since it still refers to the Director
of Public Works as, as if he were the zoning administrator, which was the case under a
prior version of the Charter. So already I have to note that this chapter is in need of some
amendment. Basically, it says that the Director may serve people with notices of
violation, et cetera. Essentially, what it does therefore is it makes the, in its relatively
simple language, it makes the enforcement of zoning ordinances under this chapter a
discretionary one.
If you look at various court cases on the subject of enforcement in general where a
government action involves the exercise of discretion, courts generally feel that, observe
that while in some cases a court may order an official to do an act that's required under
law. In general, the courts will never direct the exercise of discretion in a particular way.
In other words, courts are not eager to direct how government officials are to carry out
their duties. And they are reluctant to overturn those decisions once made unless there
can be a showing that the decision was clearly arbitrary or capricious or contrary to law.
What this means, among other things, is that one way to limit or direct the exercise of
discretion by a Planning Director or any government official for that matter would be to
be more specific in the ordinances relating to enforcement. But as I said, currently the
ordinances that we have on the books are, are relatively simplistic if you will. They, they
really don't say very much except they use the word "may" and then leave it up to the
Director to, to, to carry out these, these duties.
Madam Chair, I'll now go on to the second set of questions that were, as posed in your
memo relating to selective enforcement. In general courts will have found that certain,
certain violators may be selected by government enforcement agencies and government
enforcement officers out of a class of all known violators without violating the equal
protection clause in order to bring an appropriate case to test a regulation or statute. In
other words, you know the mere fact that some cases are brought and does not ordinar ... ,
does not mean automatically that there is a violation of the equal protection clause of the
constitution.
And the mere fact that persons similarly situated had been treated differently in terms of
enforcement does not necessarily mean that the government is acting out of malice or bad
faith. Without a showing that the government is acting for some malicious reason or for
example, to punish a person for exercising their rights or to pick on a certain class by race
or, or religion or an intent to punish certain types of groups. And it is generally not
enough to show that a law or ordinance has not been enforced against other persons in
order to sustain a claim that the enforcement practices have been discriminatory.
To quote one commentary, the mere laxity in the administration of the law no matter how
long continued is not by itself a denial of equal protection. So in other and to make a
long story short, some, some selectivity in prosecuting enforcement actions will be
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sustained and not to be found in violation of any equal protection guarantees. So long as
there is no malice or illegal motive behind these selective, these individual enforcement
cases. That concludes the, my short responses to your questions.
CHAIR BAlSA: So, before I open it to the Members. Mr. Moto, if I followed you, the selective
enforcement is like, if I have a vacation rental and my neighbor has a vacation rental and
I am visited by the inspector and given a citation and my neighbor gets nothing, that is
not considered selective enforcement?
MR. MOTO: Correct, not necessarily. The, it, in general, government officials can, are not
expected to go out and prosecute every single possible case that they can identify at the
same time. They may for various reasons whether it's severity of, of, of the particular
case at hand or whether it's ease of proof or whether it's availability of, of witnesses or,
or of investigators et cetera may identify particular cases in which to, in which to conduct
investigations and, and to pursue notices of violation.
CHAIR BAlSA: Thank you very much. I'm sure that we all feel that way at times particularly
when we're speeding up the road all together and somebody gets pulled over by the radar
policeman. Why me, Lord? So I think I understand what you're trying to say. Members,
questions? Any questions for Corp. Counsel? If not, are there questions on any of the
materials that we have before us? Any questions of the Planning Department? Now is a
good time. Mr. Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Chair. I have a question for Mr. Alueta, if you'll
permit that.
CHAIR BAlSA: Surely. Surely. Mr. Alueta, you might want to pull up a chair so you can share
the, the spot with your boss. It, it's okay. Chair will be wanting to take a recess in, right
after this question if it's okay. We'd like to take a little recess.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Chair, would you like to take a recess now?
CHAIR BAlSA: If that's the will of the Members. Shall we? No objections? Okay.
COUNCILMEMBERS VOICE NO OBJECTIONS
CHAIR BAlSA: We will have a ten-minute recess and we will reconvene at twenty to
eleven. . .. (gavel) . ..

RECESS:

10:30 a.m.

RECONVENE:

10:42 a.m.
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CHAIR BAlSA: ... (gavel). .. The Planning Committee will come back to order, please.
Mr. Medeiros, you were trying to ask a question. Please, would you go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Chair. And I'd like to address these questions to
Mr. Alueta.
CHAIR BAlSA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you. You briefly spoke about different advisory
committees and I'm assuming for Molokai, Lanai, and Hana that would be advising on a
vacation or their proposal to have a separate vacation rental ordinance for Hana. Is that
correct?
MR. ALUETA: If I may?
CHAIR BAlSA: Mr. Alueta.
MR. ALUETA: Madam Chair, Mr. Medeiros. There is a Hana Advisory Committee to the Maui
Planning Commission. There is a Maui Planning Commission, a Lanai Planning
Commission, and a Molokai Planning Commission. Hana is an advisory to the Maui
Planning Commission and this, when this ordinance was first or resolution was first
referred to the commissions, they specifically asked that the Hana Advisory Committee
to the Maui Planning Commission have an opportunity to review this resolution. You
know, as you know the original initiator, Bob Carroll was from, was the East Maui
representative and he's fully aware of the issues that are occurring within East Maui with
regards to this issue. So he wanted them to get their comments.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So the process would be that the Hana Advisory Committee
would give their recommendations to the Maui Planning Commission and it would
proceed from there?
MR. ALUETA: In issues that the Maui Planning Commission is the final authority that is the
procedure. When, because this was the resolution in which the Council has the final
authority and they just specifically sent, sent it to the Hana Advisory Committee, we just
sent it them for, that's why, sent it to them for comments and that is why in our
transmittal letter to the Council they're separated out.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Now, now, is that process still in existence? Is that going
on right now ... as far as the Hana Advisory Committee?
MR. ALUETA: Yeah. The Hana, well, the Hana Advisory Committee is a standing Board and
they meet on a, on a, they do not have a regular schedule. They meet on an as-need basis
for projects that occur within the East Maui or Hana region. The Maui Planning
Commission has the option of transmitting the application to the Hana Advisory
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Committee to hear the matter. And given the fact that the matter would, if the matter
impacts that region specifically, primary, you know, that East Maui or Keanae to Hana
region the public hearing will be held by the Hana Advisory Committee on behalf of the
Maui Planning Commission.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. And, and that gives me a segue to my next question
what you mentioned is that the Hana Advisory Committee encompasses what part of the
East Maui district? Or is it the entire East Maui district?
MR. ALUETA: Pretty much the entire East Maui district.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS:
So we talking from Kakipi Gulch all the way to
Ulupalakua? Does it include Huelo and Kailua and -MR. ALUETA: Uh huh. Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: --Keanae, Nahiku?
MR. ALUETA: Yes. Wailuanui, all of that areas. It is, and once again it's an advisory board.
When the applications come in they come in to the Planning Department. It is then
referred to the Maui Planning Commission. The Maui Planning Commission has the
opportunity or option I guess you could say to send it to the Hana Advisory Committee
for comments or to hold the public hearing on their behalf. On a rare occasion the Maui
Planning Commission will say, will not send it to Hana Advisory Committee for
comments but will hold the issue only within the Planning Commission. Or they may
send it to them for just comments and no public hearing and hold the official public
hearing at the Maui Planning Commission meeting.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. And as we discussed the TVRs and because Hana
has a lot of interim zoning, how is that handled with TVRs in respect to interim zoning?
MR. ALUETA: That's a good question. I'm not, I would have to read what the interim zone
allows. I do not believe it allows for new uses that are not specifically listed to be
allowed within the Interim District. We use the, for all projects like transient vacation
rentals we use the Hana Community Plan as our guide, as our, as our primary guide
whenever reviewing the permits that come before us. The Hana Community Plan as
indicated in the Staff report in its comparison of the community plans talks about it.
They specifically wish to kind of congregate the transient vacation rentals within the
urban core of Hana town.
And as I indicated earlier there was a, there is a, was an SBR ordinance that died in
Committee somewhere in, at Council several years ago that could be reinvigorated
because within the Hana Community Plan there's areas that are designated as SBR. And
those areas were specifically designated SBR, in other words, a single-family business
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residential district which would allow for transient vacation rentals and primarily bed and
breakfasts.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Alueta. Mahalo, Chair.
CHAIR BAlSA: Thank: you very much. Any other questions? Member Johnson.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON : Yes. Joe, with regard to Special Management Areas because I think
that Lahaina and also Kihei, we've got a number of settings that are ideal for people to
establish B&Bs, TVRs. How would the process that you're describing with simplifying
and trying to, I guess, streamline everything work when somebody is actually within a
Special Management Area because that's going to override anything else? Or would it
not be applicable if the use were, you know, permitted outright, or an administrative
approval? How would that work in terms of the SMA law?
MR. ALUETA: Depending on, we review every SMA assessment on a case-by-case basis to
determine whether or not the impacts. Whether the intensification of use that would
occur via the bed and breakfast bill be significant enough to justify a new, issuance of an
SMA permit or establishing SMA conditions that, that's questionable. Normally SMA
permits are gearing toward environmental impacts and the impacts of the new
construction into the development. If a B&B is located within an existing dwelling, per
se, it'd be more, it, the impacts to the environment would be limited. If there was new
construction such as associated parking, we may require some type of SMA permit in
addition to its bed and breakfast permit to limit the, the potential impacts of the additional
impervious surfaces.
I think one of the key components that, that in the bed and breakfast ordinance, that
besides living within the house is that the intent was to not change the character of the
community. Okay. So it's not appropriate for someone to come in with, it would not be
appropriate and we would, and then talking with, I brought the issue up with my Director
was that we would probably deny it if the person came in, wanted to do a six-bedroom
bed and breakfast. They had a 7,500 square foot lot and the only way that they could
accommodate the parking was to pave their entire front lawn. That would change the
character of the neighborhood. That would change the character, it would no longer look
like a single-family residence, it would look like a house with a big parking lot in front of
it. A paved parking lot, in fact.
So it would have to be, if someone came in for a six-bedroom bed and breakfast they
would have to be, they would have to have a large enough lot in which to accommodate
the parking and to accommodate the parking in such a manner that it would not distract
from the character of the neighborhood. I think that's one of the key issues with the
B&B. So, yes, SMA comes into play, it's a minor role, I believe, given you most likely
are dealing with existing structures, so.
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VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yeah. And, and the reason I ask this is because we have homes,
beautiful old plantation-style homes that are being knocked down in Lahaina town, and
then what replaces it is a McMansion with zero lot line and two story, it's just huge. And
I don't want to get into a situation now where if all of a sudden something is legalized it's
bad enough that the people have had to endure cutting off all of their breeze and their
view planes and everything else in these older neighborhoods. But now they're assaulted
by an influx of people coming into the neighborhood that are not, you know, full-time
residents cause you know in West Maui we do have a lot more hotel accommodations.
I don't mind the B&Bs which as you say they're purpose built. But there's one residence
that was built on Front Street just, I guess, within the last year and it actually has the
whole front yard completely paved. And there is no front yard, there is no backyard,
there is just this giant building with a car sitting in front of the house. And I just don't
want to see more of that because it's really destroying the historic nature, you know, of
downtown Lahaina. That's just one concern that I have.
I don't know, I guess, I want to be assured though that whatever we do doesn't all of a
sudden transfer some of the problems we have from our rural areas, because people say
oh, it's not worth it, I don't want to, you know, do business anymore in an area where I
cannot do it legally. And then come into the urban core and then just drive out the few
residents that are left there because we have a lot of that in Lahaina So I don't know, I
guess we'll have to deal with that in some legislative way.
One more question to Joe. And that is with regard to, I guess, some of the services and
the amenities that B&Bs oftentimes, you know, like fIre, police, even in rural areas. In
the General Plan advisory process because we're looking at the cost of community
services, we're looking at rural areas, and even if some areas were to be designated to
specifIcally accommodate TVRs or B&Bs...through rezoning. Do you see any kind of
impact fmancially or in terms of our resources that's being looked at that would now be
needed because we have these uses for people that would be more hotel-like? Do you see
any problem, you know, with providing those services?
MR. ALUETA: I, I do see that issue coming up and I think that has been some of the biggest
stumbling block primarily within the rural communities that have attempted to establish
their permits because of the, the fIre flow issue. And when, if they've gotten the permits
they've, especially with the transient vacation rentals, the, they have been required to do
some form of fIre system improvements to minimize the, the County's burden. Within
the bed and breakfast provision because the owner-operator or owner-operator lives
within the same dwelling the requirements for improvements have, should be and have
been less. Meaning the fIre department in discussions with them have required, you
know, smoke detectors and, and fIre extinguishers. They have not gone to the extreme in
some cases of requiring sprinkler systems for their house. Although I have a sprinkler
system for my house but it's, that's, they haven't required in some cases.
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I think: for the transient vacation rentals where you do not have the family living within
the home they have called that more of a commercial nature because it is and said that,
and have applied commercial standards. But I think: the, the threshold has been with
many of these agencies have been is it a true bed and breakfast or is it a transient vacation
rental? And then where it is, where is it located?
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yeah. And, and that also brings up another point too is ADA
compliance. If you've got a B&B and it's opened as a hotel or, you know, an operation
that is available to the public, how does ADA affect that? Or does it not?
MR. ALUETA: I, I, I could not tell you, I do not know the Code as far as that goes. Like I said,
we would, we would look at from the Planning Department's standpoint what is the
requirements that we have under the existing B&B law. And primarily that has to do
with health, health safety issues, fire sprinklers, food prep, the conditions that we have
are there and maintaining the harmony within that, within the neighborhood. I think:
those are the main .. (change tape, start 2E)... breakfast permits. As to whether, you
know, ADA requirements and all of that, that I, I'm not totally not familiar with.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Okay. Thank you. And, Madam Chair, I would at some point like
to have some kind of response from the, either the Commission on Persons with
Disabilities to at least just find out is there a requirement if you do have a commercial
operation to actually mandate ADA compliance for at least one of your rooms.
CHAIR BAlSA: I'm sure that we can make that request and I'll have them respond in writing.
Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Thank you very much.
CHAIR BAlSA: Mr., Member, Member Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. Thank you, Madam Chair. For either Mr. Hunt or
Mr. Alueta. You know, many of these illegal operators advertise on the internet. Does
the Department keep an inventory of suspected folks who are operating illegally, at least
who are, those who are advertising on, you know, outlets like the internet? I know you're
very busy and shorthanded Department, has, has the Department looked into cataloging
any individuals who are operating illegally?
MR. HUNT: Due to previous Administration direction the Zoning Enforcement Officers are not
pursuing, right now, are not pursuing investigation of illegal or unpermitted TVRs on
their own volition. But, again, as I said earlier, I don't mean to repeat myself but the
Department is considering that, a change in that policy.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Good. Yeah. I would hope you do. I mean that's, that's part
of the problem that we have out there.
And, making reference to your
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February 12, 2007 letter to Chairman Baisa, in the last paragraph is a suggestion that
you're making to the Council and I'll just read it verbatim. Instead of requiring a
conditional permit with a public hearing at the Planning Commission and final Council
approval, these B&Bs and TVRs could be permitted through administrative approval, and
this would encourage operators to come clean via the filing of an application that would
help to streamline the process. I think this is a novel approach and during these times I
think we need to think outside of the box.
My question to you would be, would there still be an outlet or an opportunity for the
public to come and testify if say whoever comes to you and they want to apply for an
application to become legal? There will still be an opportunity for the public to come and
testify in favor of or against? Is there some type of mechanism or venue you, you have in
mind?
MR. HUNT: The idea in that, in that memo was intended to be a genesis of policy discussion.
It's not a specific recommendation. There's a number of ways we could deal with that.
Even at an
The existing B&B ordinance requires that neighbors be notified.
administrative level we could still require that the neighbors be notified. If there's a
percentage of them that objected or requested a public hearing we could then bump it to
the Planning Commission. It depends how the Council wants to draft the final policy.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. You sort of covered my next question was the
notification of neighbors as well, so, good. And I appreciate you trying to make an
attempt to help expedite things and at least take off some of the work load of the Council.
So, thank you, Mr. Hunt. Thank you, Madam Chair.
CHAIR BAlSA: Any further questions? If not, I would like to make a few remarks and then I
have a question for Corp. Counsel as we try to conclude this morning's business. It's
been a very difficult six weeks for me as I assumed the Chair, Chairmanship of this
Committee and looked at the issues that are pending before the Committee. There's a
considerable number of items that need attention. But the TVRs kind of jumped out as an
issue that was really, really important. It had been pending for a very long time and there
was much passion on both sides of the issue. So I asked the Committee if it was okay
that we proceed with this issue first. And since doing that we have been very, very busy.
There are hundreds and hundreds of pieces of paper that needed to be reviewed. We have
met with many, many people, we've had several meetings and we've listened to much
testimony. And we've received also much written testimony. And during this process I
have understood much better the complexities of this question.
However, we do now have a new team of people on the, on the job. We have a new
Administration, we have a new Planning Director. We have a new Council and a new
Committee. I have suspected and I have seen it born out in testimony that the current
ordinance that is on the table is really not acceptable to a lot of people and there are a lot
of concerns about it. The Planning Commissions have expressed their concerns.
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Planning Department has made recommendations that I think we need to take a really
good look at including what Member Molina just referred to in his last question. And so
I think that a lot more work has to be done by sitting down, again, and taking a fresh look
at this issue. And so I think that I'll, you know, and I will, this could be, we'll be
discussing this further today. That, that's where I'm at, at the moment. And I'll be
making a recommendation in a little while.
But I'd like to ask Mr. Moto a question. Mr. Moto, what could the County do to enforce
the existing laws that prohibit TVRs in certain districts and provide greater clarity to
everyone? There seems to be much confusion about this issue. I'd appreciate your, your
candid answer.
MR. MOTO: Madam Chair, I do agree with the observation made by the Planning Director
earlier in today's meeting where he observed that one thing that could be done would be
to amend the law on conditional permits, which is Chapter 19.40. And this is just one,
one measure or step. And this, and this is important because for many years now,
enforcement actions have been either withheld or held in abeyance while people on their
own initiative or sometimes at the urging of others have applied for conditional permits.
And the conditional permit law has as it stands now and it has been for many years really
is not, doesn't specify when it will, when it's appropriate to be granted and when it's not.
It in particular it doesn't really say whether a conditional permit is an appropriate vehicle
to be used to legalize transient vacation rentals in, in all land use districts. So that is one
area in which, one area of legislation that could be considered. In particular if, if an
amendment is made to that Chapter, I think it will provide a lot of people direction as to
what will be permitted and what won't and where.
CHAIR BAlSA: Thank you. Members, any questions for Corp. Counsel? If not the Chair
would like to ...
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chair.
CHAIR BAlSA: Yes?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Madam.
CHAIR BAlSA: I'm sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: May I ask just a few questions since your... (inaudible) ...
CHAIR BAlSA: Surely, Member Hokama. Go right ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Maybe for the Planning Department. So either Mr. Alueta or
the Director, please. Heard your recommendation, now we hear Mr. Moto's comments.
Regarding the, the State Special Use Permit, anything under 15 currently the State allows
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the County to process. That would be a correct understanding of this Committee's part at
this time?
MR. HUNT: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Can the County refuse to process the State's Special Use
Permit 15 acres or less?
MR. HUNT: The County can be more restrictive than the State. So even though the State would
allow that use we could ...
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Say that we choose not to process-MR. HUNT: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: --those applications and let the State Land Use Commission
or Office of State Planning handle those requests?
MR. HUNT: I, I guess my approach would be more a legislative approach rather than simply
refusing to process we should state clearly from the beginning we, we're not allowing
those uses in the first place to alleviate the application in the first place.
MR. ALUETA: If! may, Madam Chair.
CHAIR BAlSA: Surely, go ahead.
MR. ALUETA: Within 19.30A, which is the County agricultural district, it for the most part the
land areas that it covers is exactly the same as the State agricultural lands. As I said, the
County, County can be more restrictive. Currently, if someone comes in with a transient
vacation rental within the State land use, within the Agricultural Districts, it's normally
within the State Ag and County Agricultural Districts. And we require both the State
land use Special Use Permit and a County Conditional Permit as well.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: No. I understand that part, Mr. Alueta.
MR. ALUETA: So if we said, if you said, so you need two to operate. So, if the County said
we're not going to allow conditional permits or as prohibited, regardless of whether we
process the State Special Use Permit, if they were never, ifthey weren't allowed to obtain
a Conditional Permit they would not be able to operate. I mean that's my reading, I could
be, if Mr. Moto ...
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: No. Joe, I understand that. I just was curious whether the
State statute that allows us this processing if it's discretionary and that the County need
not process it if we choose not to. Would that be a good understanding? I think the
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statute says that the County may process State Special Use Pennits of 15 acres or less.
It's not a requirement for us to process it, right?
MR. ALUETA: I, I would have to look into that a little further to get clarity from the State
Office of Planning.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. Okay. No, no, no, I'm just curious about whether or
not we need to do the State's job again. At our cost, again. Thank you very much, Chair.
CHAIR BAlSA:
Thank you,
Member Johnson.

Mr. Hokama.

Any additional comments, questions?

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: And I apologize if this question was already asked. I know at
previous meeting it had been spoken about that because of our fiscal year operations and
also some constraints with regard to just enforcement overall. This would be to
Mr. Moto. We have had a suggestion that we look an outside enforcement entity to come
in and actually just do an analysis, review, whatever. Is there a possibility that we could
do a request for a proposal for just like we do park security or other functions to do an
RFP for an outside agency to take over some of the responsibilities for doing
enforcement?
MR. MOTO: Madam Chair, I have to be frank with you. I've not done any kind of preparatory
work on that matter. I don't know what the answer is and I'm kind of hesitant to give
you a firm one. Just off the top of my head one of the issues for example that we would
have to look into is the, the laws regarding government work and whether certain types of
services can be essentially privatized or not. But that's about as much as I'm, I should
say at this time. It's something that we would have to look into.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yeah. And I know we have our collecting, collective bargaining
agreements and we're prohibited sometimes by those things. But I think that what
Councilmember Hokama had brought up before needs at least some kind of clarification,
because the question has been asked of me numerous times and I don't know the answer
to it. So I think that's one thing.
Another thing that I would like to obtain an answer for and it would probably be through
our Department of Finance. I believe it was either last legislative session or the session
before. We were advised that a State law passed which gave the Counties access to GET
and TAT information so that we could make a determination. 'Cause some people have
been very good and they've been legitimate all the way along paying their proper taxes
and what not. But others may not have, so I guess to get a handle on where we were to
get access to the information at the County level the law was passed. And I believe the
Governor vetoed it but then it was overridden by the State Legislature. So I want to
know where does that stand? Do we have tax information that we can get access to for
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GET, TAT to at least try to look at, you know, some kind of compliance? Because that is
another vehicle for us to at least get access to that information.
CHAIR BAlSA: Chair will make that, will make that request.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Thank you.
CHAIR BAlSA: Thank you very much. Any other questions? Comments?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Question.
CHAIR BAlSA: Chair Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you. I'm just curious for the Planning Department. I
can understand when we look at those areas that we have full jurisdiction over. When we
talk about ag land and if it is still classified as State agriculture lands. Have we in the
past, when we have been made aware of violations, also notified DLNR? They have
enforcement also and they have a responsibility regarding, I guess, provisions of State
statute. Do we coordinate, because instead of just the County inspectors we have State
enforcement officials with Land and Natural Resources. If it's violating State ag laws are
those personnel can be considered to either issue notices of violation or fines as well as
the County?
MR. HUNT: I'm, I'm not aware of whether we are coordinating or notifying DLNR. But it's a,
it's a good question and we'll look into that and get back to you.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. 'Cause you're not just violating County law, you're
violating State law.
MR. HUNT: I know that along the coast in the SMA area we do coordinate and notify DLNR.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR BAlSA: Alright. Thank you. Further questions? Comments? Yes. Member Johnson.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: There was one more that I wanted to make sure -CHAIR BAlSA: Sure.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: --because in, I believe there was a Department of Planning
transmittal and this was from November 1,2001. And it was Maui Vacation Rental
Association and it's in our packet. At the time, Mr. John Min had met with the MYRA
and there are certain representations made within that memorandum that I guess at that
point in time was establishing a practice or a policy and a methodology to, I guess, start
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taking in these pennits because of the consensus at that point in time and the direction
that everything appeared to be going. My question would be and it could possibly be to
Corporation Counselor Planning.
You don't have to answer it now but I want to know because there were representations
made within that memorandum that basically gave an indication of the way things were
going to be treated at that point in time. Does that for those individuals that were sort of
in line or those individuals that submitted applications during that period of time, does
that give them any kind of a status or a standing that would differentiate them from
people coming forward now that weren't standing in line? 'Cause I just, you know, it, on
the face of it, it seems a little bit unfair, just looking at it as the lay person, to say hey, we
were going down a road and this is what we were told now, and then we're going a
180 degrees the other direction and I made certain decisions and plans based on those
representations, so now I'm caught right in the middle of this whole thing. And I just,
you know, if you want to think about it, if you want to give some kind of a response. I
just would like to know from a legal perspective do those people have any kind of
standing or would there be a grandfathering or any kind of exception given the facts that
we've been given now?
CHAIR BAlSA: Well, since that's a legal question do we want to give that to Corp. Counsel?
MR. HUNT: Chair, I wouldn't mind offering just a comment.
CHAIR BAlSA: Sure. Go ahead.
MR. HUNT: The Planning Department is, considered that very issue and especially in regards to
if we start going down a road where we levy a fine against the TVR operator. Is that
really fair to go now backwards after we gave these people directions that this was okay?
And so the initial thought was that it's not fair, it's government again moving the goal
post. We would, again we haven't firmed up our policy, it needs to be discussed
thoroughly. We'll be working with Corporation Counsel. But, yeah, it's an issue that we
are aware of and we're trying to deal with it.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: I really appreciate that, and I would like something, you know, at
least some kind of an opinion. So that, I don't feel it's fair to the general public if
they've had one impression and we've been going down one road for a while and then
just go 180 degrees the other direction. So I, I just want some kind of guidance.
CHAIR BAlSA: Mr. Moto, any comments?
MR. MOTO: No, Madam Chair. Although I will be upfront in saying that as I look at this
document, I don't necessarily interpret it as binding the current Planning Director or
preventing the County from taking legislative measures or from enforcing the laws that
are currently on the books. And I certainly would not concede at this point that, that the
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County necessarily waived any of its rights or conceded any legal rights to others simply
by Mr. Min's execution of a copy of this letter. I think a lot will depend upon a particular
case that's presented. No cases are alike but the mere fact that there is this letter does
not, in my mind, constitute a declaration that certain TVRs will be allowed to continue
indefinitely.
CHAIR BAlSA: Thank you, Mr. Moto. Any further questions? If not, the Chair will be pleased
to accept a motion to recommend filing of County Communication 01-150 and Land Use
Commission Report No. 02-94 and referral to the Planning Committee of the matter
relating to the County's enforcement policies relating to TVRs.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Second.
CHAIR BAlSA:
Moved by Mr. Hokama.
Mr. Hokama.

Seconded by Mr. Medeiros.

Discussion?

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Boy it's been a long road definitely and I would think from
the administration of Lingle to Apana to Arakawa that I can recall each Administration
has done some internal administrative adjustments to this subject. Council has not made
a decision to set policy, so I would agree with Mr. Moto that until this body by Council
action creates such policy, Madam Chair, that the County forfeits nothing or grants
nothing away within our authority.
I would say that it, you know, I, I've been home enough and I've attended those Planning
Commission, our Planning Commission meetings, listening to our community. And I
would agree, Madam Chair, that a broad-brush approach doesn't seem to fit our
multi-island County. We definitely have different community make-ups. Definitely have
different community amenities regarding transient accommodations whether it be a
five-star hotel, a simple ten-room lodge, whatever it may be. Each region, each
community has different community assets and I think we need to be aware of that. We
need to recognize that and see if there's a way of crafting a future legislation that
addresses the unique differences within the County. 'Cause I believe it's going to be hard
to have a one-size-fits-alllegislation with this subject.
Also, Madam Chair, I think it's important that we not confuse and I think one of the
things that this proposed ordinance did was confuse bread [sic] and breakfast operations,
which is already established in the code, with vacation rentals where the property owner
is not part of the program. I, I hope we can keep it separate. And that whatever
legislation may occur that if, you know, we need to require registration numbers,
Madam Chair. If you don't, and require it in the their advertisement. You don't have the
County's registration number then you are not a legal operator. And I think that's maybe
one of the better ways since everyone's going to want to advertise for the business if you
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don't have that County number we can assume that you have not been permitted. If
that's the route we want to go.
But I would just share that, Madam Chair. It's interesting in what we've heard on the
various islands. All I can tell you is about 100 years ago a very brave common man
stood up and warned our people, the kamaainas, the na keiki 0 ka aina, the maka' iii nana
about this big wave that was coming to Hawaii. The reason things worked in the past
was that there was an acceptance to adjust to who we are, to what our community is. And
this brave young common man stood fast and called upon the local people to prepare, to
be just as smart, to be ready to compete and to be ready to fight to maintain what is
special to us. And today one of our schools honors that man, it is Lahainaluna. And that
very famous common man, 1800s was David Malo and we honor him with David Malo
Day. A man of vision and foresight that saw this wave coming and trying to make us
change to what the wave is bringing instead of them accepting and becoming part of this
community.
There's reasons why we have residential categories, this is what the people wanted. It's
in our General Plan. We don't want the visitor industry to grow. We want a more
balanced economy. We don't want to be dependant on a visitor. We talk about
sustainability. Look at the fight Molokai continues generation after generation to remain
their special, unique community. It is now being focused again on a specific issue, Laau
Point. But look at Molokai, they have stood fast, Madam Chair. Good or bad they ask to
maintain a degree of controlling their destiny. That is, to me, a fair request that I can
support.
I think Lanai we feel the same way, we've taken a different path but we made that choice
and we will live with the consequences. I think with this subject we need to go back and
understand that the General Plan we're trying to fulfill, the community plans that we try
to follow is what the people want. And when you don't follow those laws or a code or a
community plan, General Plan, what are you telling the local people? You're not good
enough? Doesn't work for me so I'm going to change the way I want your community to
be like. I don't think so.
I think it's interesting that this is continuing like a cancer spreading in other areas -- the
attitude of ignoring laws of our society, our island society, Madam Chair. We have this
before us, vacation rentals but every day you and I are in traffic. How many people
disregard red lights through intersections now? How many people are so busy instead of
waiting for the person to do the left tum safely decides to hop easement, hop the
sidewalk, or ride the shoulder to save what, a second. This is not our way, Madam Chair.
That's not our islands society'S way. The islands society'S way has always been about
we, was never about me. And I'm getting tired of this me-generation mentality spreading
and destroying what I believe makes us great. And so I can support this motion on the
floor, Madam Chair, because I for one have heard the words of David Malo. Thank you.
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CHAIR BAlSA: Thank you, Chair. Other Members? Member Johnson.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Well, since I've been here through all of the different conversations
and dealt with the issue for years it's, I guess hindsight is always 20/20. And had we had
the information or had we had the guidance basically I think from, guess all those, my
first term on the Council I was a newbie, so I didn't know all the laws. I knew generally
HRS 205 which is why I always keep going back to that with Mr. Alueta. But mainly I
think that the information would have been helpful at the front part of the process to say
you can't go where you want to go, you can't go where you're being lead. Because many
of the people are my friends, they operate vacation rentals or they are in B&Bs. Some of
them have been trying to go through a process that I believed and I think the majority of
the Council at least .. (change tape, start 3A). .. perhaps there was a way. And I, I will
all due respect to Mr. Carroll, he could see this conflict and he tried very hard to fmd a
way, to find a middle ground, to find a compromise so that people could still be permitted
a livelihood, have a small mom-and-pop operation and it's, it's always the way though in
society -- the few ruin it for the many.
Because some people saw what at that time -- five years ago, six years ago, when I got on
the Council -- was a much smaller operation. Everybody saw dollar signs, they saw that
these people had a way to actually, I guess, operate within a system that would enable
them to pay their mortgages, get top dollar, do all kinds of things that they wouldn't have
been able to do otherwise. Because they believed we were going down this road. I
believed we were going down this road. And I guess sometimes we are our own worst
enemy. Because if we had really and maybe I'm part of the problem too, maybe if I had
done more research, maybe if I had learned about the laws a little bit better, asked more
probing questions I would have gotten those answers early on and adopted that attitude.
I just, I think it's very hard for a lot of the people that, you know, come now and look at
this. So sometimes government is not always part of the solution, sometimes we are part
of the problem. So for me I apologize to the people in the community who have gone
down this path, who've put their applications in thinking that there was some way.
Particularly in agricultural areas because I do think that I look at the Silver Cloud Ranch,
I look at Surfmg Goat Dairy, I look at Alii Kula Lavender and other operations that I
think really are, are just wonderful examples of where we could use agri-tourism. Where
we could use the farm experience because I, somewhere we've got to work with the State
to address those exceptions.
But I hope that whatever ordinances come down and my understanding would be that in
working in cooperation with the Administration we will be looking at the bed and
breakfast route. Looking at areas, looking at General Plan advisory information, the
resources that we have to actually zone areas and maybe cap or have a limitation like we
do on taxi medallions of where these particular types of visitor accommodations can
occur. And I also hope that at some point in time we also look at areas like planned-unit
developments, like Puamana because if I have more complaint about that particular
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complex. I mean you have two camps: one, we're going to do our vacation rentals and
doesn't matter, and other people that wanted the enjoyment of what they originally
bought into at Puamana. So I hope those issues are looked at.
But I can see that we can't get where we thought we originally wanted to go because
primarily due to State laws, constraints within our own County ordinances. And we've
heard after this long protracted process from the Planning Commissions that we were
headed down a road that many felt we should not have gone down in the ftrst place. And
I respect that, it is what it is. I apologize for any negligence on my part, because maybe I
wasn't as knowledgeable as I should have been being a newbie on the Council. But you
know I, the law is the law and it applies to everyone equally. So I am willing to support
the direction, Madam Chair, that we've been given by our constituents. I respect the
opinions of many of the people that have come before us. I'm sad to say that some of
them may not be able to continue but I encourage others who do have bed and breakfast
potential to pursue that route when that legislation comes forward.
CHAIR BAlSA: Thank you -VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Thank you.
CHAIR BAlSA: --Member Johnson. Other comments? Member Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS:
Mahalo, Chair.
Yes.
I too will support your
recommendation and this motion. And I want to compliment you, Chair, on, in six weeks
being able to take on this issue and, and move it forward. Like Council Chair Hokama
though I'd like to think that there's a possibility and a potential of considering Molokai,
Lanai, and Hana as unique communities with unique needs. And especially in Hana, you
know, we, we deal with the, you know, one major employer and then some smaller
businesses. So I would be thinking and contemplating, you know, trying to craft maybe
something different for the outside islands and you know a lot of times Hana is
considered an outside island because of its distance and isolation. In fact, we're further
by road miles than Molokai and Lanai are by nautical miles. So I think we need to
consider this. But once again, I, I thank you for your leadership in moving this along.
Mahalo.
CHAIR BAlSA: Thank you, Member Medeiros. Member Molina, any comments?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:
Yeah.
Thank you, Madam Chair.
I'll support your
recommendation and just a, I guess, a slight commentary on, with what happens with the
prior Administration's policy with regards to the enforcement issue. Although it was a
noble effort but I think the reality is it didn't work and instead we've seen the
proliferation of the concern of the vacation rental industry. And you know residents who
are impacted by neighboring vacation rentals they've come out to express their concerns
as well. So unfortunately it basically brought us down to this, to doing this. So we have
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to look at the other alternatives and I look forward to working with the Planning
Department and I'm hoping that the new Administration and from what I've been hearing
today they're taking a very, I guess, hard look at looking at a new approach, if you will,
to try and rectify this problem, Madam Chair. So we, we have to think outside of the box
and look for other alternatives. So this is one step in that direction. So I'll support it.
Thank you.
CHAIR BAlSA: Thank you, Member Molina. I want to say that it's been a very, very difficult
time. It's not easy to come into a situation like this in a very divisive issue and try to
maintain fairness, openness and not get polarized. I've looked at everything, I've met
with many, many people, and I've been advised legally and emotionally and everyway
you can look at it. And the Committee has worked really, really hard with me and I want
to thank the Committee for the support that you've given me in working with me on this
very difficult issue. I want to assure everyone that the Committee Chair will work with
the Planning Director and with the new team and we will submit a legislative proposal on
TVRs at a later date. So it ain't over until it's over. And I'd like to call for the vote. All
those in favor of the motion please say aye. Opposed? No. The Chair will record five
affirmative votes.
VOTE:

AYES:

Councilmembers Hokama, Medeiros, and Molina, Vice-Chair
Johnson, and Chair Baisa.

NOES:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

ABSENT:

None.

EXC.:

None.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

Recommending FILING of County Communication 01-150 and
Land Use Committee Report No. 02-94; and REFERRAL to the
Planning Committee of the matter relating to the County's
enforcement policies relating to Transient Vacation Rentals.

CHAIR BAlSA: There being no further business, are there any announcements?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Chair.
CHAIR BAlSA: Yes.
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah. I, I, since Member Victorino is not here I'd like to
take his place in making that announcement. I want to say that, I want to wish my son
BJ Lanakila Redo Medeiros a happy birthday today. He's a teacher at Lokelani
Intermediate School, and to, to my son I say hauoli la hanau, aloha ia oe and have a great
day. Mahalo.
CHAIR BAlSA: Thank you very much. Any other announcements? Before we leave I have
been very remiss, I hope that somewhere in TV land the gentleman who was so kind to
bring this beautiful bouquet that is in front of the podium here, brought it the other day
and I was remiss, I didn't get his name, I didn't tell him thank you. And so I want to
thank him publicly and if any of you who know who it was, please express the thanks of
the Council. We're enjoying it very, very much.
I also would like to thank the Staff who have been so helpful to me in arriving at this
point. You know as a Council Member, you don't do it alone, you do it in working and
in partnership with many, many people. I also would again like to thank the public that
has participated, thank all of you that are here today very, very much. And the meeting is
now adjourned. . .. (gavel) . ..

ADJOURN: 11 :39 a.m.
APPROVED:

~ C.~
C. BAlSA, Chair
Planning Committee
Transcribed by: Daniel Schoenbeck

pc:min:070215
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